
Democratic Services Contact Officer: Patrick Adams 03450 450 500 

 
 
 
 
 
 

6 December 2012 
 
To: Chairman – Councillor Francis Burkitt 
 Vice-Chairman – Councillor David McCraith 
 Members of the Corporate Governance Committee – Councillors Richard Barrett, 

Mark Hersom, Douglas de Lacey, Ted Ridgway Watt, Peter Topping and 
John Williams 

Quorum: 3 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE, 
which will be held in MONKFIELD ROOM, FIRST FLOOR at South Cambridgeshire Hall on 
FRIDAY, 14 DECEMBER 2012 at 9.00 a.m. 
 
Members are respectfully reminded that when substituting on committees, subcommittees, and 
outside or joint bodies, Democratic Services must be advised of the substitution in advance of 
the meeting.  It is not possible to accept a substitute once the meeting has started.  Council 
Standing Order 4.3 refers. 
 
Yours faithfully 
JEAN HUNTER 
Chief Executive 
 

The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the 
community, access to its agendas and minutes.  We try to take all 
circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, 

please let us know, and we will do what we can to help you. 
 

 
AGENDA 

PAGES 
1. Apologies for Absence    
 To receive apologies for absence from committee members.   
   
2. Declarations of Interest    
 
3. Minutes of Previous Meeting   1 - 4 
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 28 September 2012, as a 

correct record. 
 

   
 AUDIT REPORTS   
 
4. Internal Audit Progress Report   5 - 8 
 
5. External Audit: Annual Audit Letter 2011-12 and Certification of 

Claims Report  
 9 - 16 

 

 South Cambridgeshire Hall 
Cambourne Business Park 
Cambourne 
Cambridge 
CB23 6EA 
t: 03450 450 500 
f: 01954 713149 
dx: DX 729500 Cambridge 15 
minicom: 01480 376743 
www.scambs.gov.uk 



 INFORMATION ITEMS   
 
6. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) - Quarterly 

Update  
 17 - 20 

 
7. Matters of Topical Interest    
 Annual Governance Statement 

The Chairman of the Committee and the Executive Director have been 
discussing the use and efficacy of a number of year end reports and 
statements and the potential for rationalising these or ceasing their 
production.  Principally, but not exclusively, these include; the Statement 
of Accounts, the Plain English Accounts, the Annual Governance 
Statement, the annual Performance Report, the Corporate Plan and an 
Annual Report. 
 
While some of these reports are required by regulation / statute and 
others are considered best practice it is clear their readership amongst 
and accessibility to stakeholders is limited at best.  The Executive 
Director has therefore commissioned RSM Tenon to review best practice 
among their client base and to form recommendations on how these 
documents will be produced this year end.  A more detailed consideration 
will be put before the Committee in March 2013 but the Committee may 
wish to consider a general discussion at this stage to inform that review. 
 
Head of Finance, Policy and Performance 
The Committee may wish to be aware that John Garnham, formerly 
Principal Accountant, was appointed to this post earlier this month. As 
such John will be the Council’s Deputy Chief Finance Officer. 

 

   
8. Dates of Next Meetings    
 The Committee is requested to note the following meeting dates: 

• 22 March 2013 at 09:00am 
• 28 June 2013 at 09:00am 
• 27 September 2013 at 09:00am 
• 13 December 2013 at 09:00am 

 

   
 

OUR VISION 
South Cambridgeshire will continue to be the best place to live and work in the country. Our 
district will demonstrate impressive and sustainable economic growth. Our residents will have a 
superb quality of life in an exceptionally beautiful, rural and green environment. The Council will 
be recognised as consistently innovative and a high performer with a track record of delivering 
value for money by focussing on the priorities, needs and aspirations of our residents, parishes 
and businesses. 
 

OUR VALUES 
We will demonstrate our corporate values in all our actions. These are: 
• Trust 
• Mutual respect 
• A commitment to improving services 
• Customer service 

 
  



 GUIDANCE NOTES FOR VISITORS TO SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE HALL 
 While the District Council endeavours to ensure that visitors come to no harm when visiting South 
Cambridgeshire Hall, those visitors also have a responsibility to make sure that they do not risk their own 
or others’ safety. 
 
Security 
Members of the public attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices must report to 
Reception, sign in, and at all times wear the Visitor badges issued.  Before leaving the building, such 
visitors must sign out and return their Visitor badges to Reception. 
 
Emergency and Evacuation 
In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound.  Evacuate the building using the nearest escape 
route; from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this would be via the staircase just outside 
the door.  Go to the assembly point at the far side of the staff car park. 
• Do not use the lifts to exit the building.  If you are unable to negotiate stairs by yourself, the 

emergency staircase landings are provided with fire refuge areas, which afford protection for a 
minimum of 1.5 hours.  Press the alarm button and wait for assistance from the Council fire 
wardens or the fire brigade. 

• Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the fire brigade confirms that it is safe to 
do so. 

 
First Aid 
If someone feels unwell or needs first aid, please alert a member of staff. 
 
Access for People with Disabilities 
The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to its agendas and 
minutes. We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us 
know, and we will do what we can to help you.  All meeting rooms are accessible to wheelchair users.  
There are disabled toilet facilities on each floor of the building.  Infra-red hearing assistance systems are 
available in the Council Chamber and viewing gallery. To use these, you must sit in sight of the infra-red 
transmitter and wear a ‘neck loop’, which can be used with a hearing aid switched to the ‘T’ position.  If 
your hearing aid does not have the ‘T’ position facility then earphones are also available and can be used 
independently. You can obtain both neck loops and earphones from Reception. 
 
Toilets 
Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts. 
 
Recording of Business and Use of Mobile Phones 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency.  The Council and all its committees, sub-
committees or any other sub-group of the Council or the Executive have the ability to formally suspend 
Standing Order 21.4 (prohibition of recording of business) upon request to enable the recording of 
business, including any audio / visual or photographic recording in any format.   
 
Use of social media during meetings is permitted to bring Council issues to a wider audience.  To 
minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, all attendees and visitors are asked to make sure 
that their phones and other mobile devices are set on silent / vibrate mode during meetings. 
 
Banners, Placards and similar items 
No member of the public shall be allowed to bring into or display at any Council meeting any banner, 
placard, poster or other similar item. The Chairman may require any such item to be removed. 
 
Disturbance by Public 
If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Chairman will warn the person concerned.  If they 
continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal from the meeting room.  If there is a general 
disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public, the Chairman may call for that part to be 
cleared. 
 
Smoking 
Since 1 July 2008, the Council has operated a Smoke Free Policy. Visitors are not allowed to smoke at 
any time within the Council offices, or in the car park or other grounds forming part of those offices. 
 
Food and Drink 
Vending machines and a water dispenser are available on the ground floor near the lifts at the front of the 
building.  Visitors are not allowed to bring food or drink into the meeting room. 
   



This page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Corporate Governance Committee held on 
Friday, 28 September 2012 at 9.00 a.m. 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Francis Burkitt – Chairman 
  Councillor David McCraith – Vice-Chairman 
 
Councillors: Douglas de Lacey Ted Ridgway Watt 
 Peter Topping John Williams 
 
Officers: Patrick Adams Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 Alex Colyer Executive Director, Corporate Services 
 Fiona McMillan Legal & Democratic Services Manager and 

Monitoring Officer 
 Sally Smart Principal Accountant Financial & Systems 
 
External: Andrew Clewer Ernst & Young 
 Neil Gibson Audit Commission 
 Paul King Audit Commission 
 Daniel Harris RSM Tenon 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Richard Barrett and Mark Hersom. 
 
55. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 None. 
  
56. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2012 were agreed as a correct record. 
  
57. INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY REPORT 
 
 Daniel Harris, RSM Tenon, presented his report, which provided an update on progress 

made on the internal audit plan for 2012/13 which was approved by the Committee in 
March 2012. The Chairman praised the new format of the report. 
 
It was noted that management had agreed the recommendations made in the reports for 
2012/13, with agreed target dates for implementation. 
 
It was agreed that the Internal Auditor’s report on Governance should be shared with the 
members of the Committee, due to the relevance that the report had to the work of the 
Committee. 
 
The Committee NOTED the report. 

  
58. INTRODUCTION FROM THE COUNCIL'S NEW EXTERNAL AUDITORS ERNST & 

YOUNG 
 
 Andy Clewer, from Ernst & Young, explained that following the Government’s decision to 

go out to tender for the external audit contracts for the public sector in 10 geographical 
areas, Ernst & Young had been awarded the contract for the southern and the eastern 
regions. The Audit Commission’s role had been reduced to an overseeing function. The 
officers in the Audit Commission, who had been responsible for auditing the public sector 
in the eastern region, would be transferred over to Ernst & Young and no redundancies 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



Corporate Governance Committee Friday, 28 September 2012 

would be necessary. It was understood that Ernst & Young would provide staff who had 
transferred from the Audit Commission with stability and job opportunities in a large 
organisation after about two years of uncertainty. It was expected that Neil Gibson and 
Paul King would continue to audit the Council, after their transfer to Ernst & Young. 
 
Andy Clewer stated that he considered the Council to be a low risk organisation. He 
stressed that the aim of Ernst & Young was to provide as much continuity as possible and 
in that light Paul King and Neil Gibson would continue as the Council’s external auditors. It 
was noted that Ernst & Young used different auditing methods to those practiced by the 
Audit Commission and the Council could expect to see the use of new technology, 
particularly with regard to benchmarking. 
 
It was noted that Ernst & Young’s audit fee would be approximately 40% less that the 
charge levied by the Audit Commission. Andy Clewer explained that there were three 
reasons for the reduction: 
• The change in the terms and conditions for staff transferred. 
• The removal of the overhead charge for the Audit Commission. 
• The tender exercise.  

 
The Committee thanked Andy Clewer for his presentation and informative answers. 

  
59. EXTERNAL AUDIT: ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT 2011/12 
 
 Paul King introduced this report, which summarised the findings from the 2011/12 audit 

and concluded that an unqualified opinion and certificate would be issued and the Council 
had made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in use of 
resources. It was noted that the 30 September 2012 deadline for the agreement of the 
Statement of Accounts had been met. Discussion focused on the two uncorrected errors in 
the revised financial statements. 
 
Repurchased element of Equity Share housing 
Neil Gibson explained that the valuation of the repurchased element of Equity Share 
housing had been assessed at its social housing instead of its market value. The 
Executive Director explained that this issue would be rectified for future years. It was 
estimated that the undervaluation of £943,000 was due to approximately 15 houses. 
 
Minimum Revenue Provision 
Neil Gibson explained that a review of the Housing Revenue Account had revealed that 
since 2004 the minimum revenue provision to cover future debts had been undervalued by 
a cumulative total of £320,000 and a total of £52,000 for 2011/12. It was understood that 
the original error had been made under a different team of auditors. 
 
Right to Buy 
In response to questioning, the Executive Director explained that the Council had made a 
provision for an increase in Right to Buys but in the current economic climate the number 
of properties sold under this legislation had been far less than prepared for.  
 
External audit fees 
It was noted that external audit’s fees for work on claims and returns was £32,400, which 
was £3,000 more than expected. It was understood that the Council was claiming back 
millions of pounds from the Government and so it was important that this area was 
properly audited. 
 
Guidance booklet 
The Committee thanked staff for the production of a “Plain English” guidance booklet on 
the accounts, which presented the information in an easily understood format.  

Page 2



Corporate Governance Committee Friday, 28 September 2012 

 
Members of the Committee unanimously agreed to thank staff for their work with regard to 
the Annual Governance Report. 
 
The Committee NOTED the adjustments to the financial statements included in the report 
at appendices 2 and 3. 
 
The Committee APPROVED the letter of representation on behalf of the Council. 

  
60. FINANCIAL REGULATIONS 
 
 The Committee discussed this item, which recommended amendments to the Financial 

Regulations to allow more flexibility to appoint and remove authorised signatories quickly 
and easily. 
 
It was agreed that decisions to remove an officer from the list of authorised signatories 
should not be subject to call-in as any delay could be potentially damaging to the authority.  
 
It was noted that there were a number of grammatical corrections (including modal verbs) 
required to the proposed amendments to the Constitution and it was agreed that 
delegated authority should be given to the Legal and Democratic Services Manager to 
make these changes.  
 
The Committee unanimously 
 
AGREED  
 

A) To amend the final sentence of paragraph 6.4 of the proposed Financial 
Regulations to “…and the Chief Financial Officer be authorised to delete 
authorised signatories from the list with immediate effect. Members will be 
informed through the Weekly Bulletin of any amendments.” 

 
B) To delegate authority to the Legal and Democratic Services Manager to make a 

number of minor grammatical corrections to the proposed Financial Regulations. 
 
RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL The revised Financial Regulations for approval. 

  
61. APPROVAL OF THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2011/12 
 
 The Executive Director introduced this report which invited the Committee to approve the 

2011/12 Statement of Accounts and agree the letter of representation. It was noted that it 
was a legal requirement for the Statement of Accounts to be agreed by 30 September 
2012. 
 
The Committee 
 
APPROVED The 2011/12 Statement of Accounts. 
 
AGREED The letter of representation. 

  
62. REVISED POLICY: REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 
 
 The Legal and Democratic Services Manager presented this report which recommended 

the amendment of the Council’s policy following legislative changes introduced in the 
Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 which will come into force on 1 November 2012 and to 
give an update on the use of Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) powers in the 

Page 3



Corporate Governance Committee Friday, 28 September 2012 

last quarter. The Legal and Democratic Services Manager explained that from 1 
November 2012 all local authority surveillance authorised under RIPA will have to be 
approved by a Magistrate, although it was unclear whether this had to be requested from 
the courts in person or whether it would be a far simpler procedure. It was noted that the 
Council had only used these powers once in the last quarter. 
 
The Committee unanimously 
 
NOTED The information contained in the report about the Council’s use of 

surveillance powers in the period July to September 2012. 
 
AGREED The recommendations for amendments to the Council’s RIPA policy as laid 

out in Appendix A. 
  
63. TREASURY MANAGEMENT BENCHMARKING 2011/12 
 
 The Principal Accountant Financial and Systems presented this report, which showed that 

the Council had achieved a return of 2.45% on its combined investments, compared to 
1.20% for its comparator group and 1.19% for the overall group. In response to 
questioning the Principal Accountant Financial and Systems assured the Committee that 
the Council’s investments were low risk and the returns were achieved through careful 
cash flow forecasting, enabling longer term deposits, rather than investing with high risk 
banks offering higher rates. 
 
It was noted that the interest rates offered by banks to the Council were confidential and it 
was suggested that although this information had been readily shared with councillors, it 
might not be possible to put in the public domain. It was suggested that in future the 
names of the banks which the Council invested with should be made public to enable 
others to judge the authority’s assertion that it did not make high risk investments. 
 
The Chairman congratulated officers on achieving high returns through low risk 
investments and the Committee NOTED the report. 

  
64. MATTERS OF TOPICAL INTEREST 
 
 None. 
  
65. DATES OF NEXT MEETINGS 
 
 The Committee NOTED the following meeting dates: 

• Friday 14 December 2012 at 9am 
• Friday 22 March 2013 at 9am 

 
The Committee AGREED the following future meeting dates: 
• Friday 28 June 2013 at 9am 
• Friday 27 September 2013 at 9am 
• Friday 13 December 2013 at 9am 

  
  

The Meeting ended at 10.30 a.m. 
 

 

Page 4



 

 

South Cambridgeshire District Council 

 

Internal Audit Progress Report 

Corporate Governance Committee Meeting: 14 December 2012 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 4Page 5



 

1 

 

 

Introduction 

The internal audit plan for 2012/13 was approved by the Corporate Governance Committee in March 2012.  This 
report provides an update on progress against that plan and summarises the results of our work to date. 

Summary of Progress against the Internal Audit Plan 

Assignment 
Reports considered today are shown in italics 

Status Opinion 
Actions Agreed (by priority) 

   High        Medium      Low  

2012/13 

Section 106 Housing and Other 
Requirements including Open Spaces 
(1.12/13) 

FINAL Amber / Green 0 3 4 

Planning and Growth (2.12/13)  FINAL Amber / Green 0 1 4 

Medium Term Financial Planning 
(3.12/13) FINAL Green 0 0 0 

Governance (4.12/13) FINAL Amber / Green 0 4 3 

Housing Rents (5.12/13) FINAL Green 0 1 2 

Repairs – Partnership Arrangements 
(6.12/13) 

FINAL Red 1 6 3 

Supported Housing (7.12/13) FINAL Amber/Green 0 1 2 

General Ledger (8.12/13) FINAL Green 0 0 0 

Housing Allocations and Voids 
(9.12/13) 

Draft issued 9 
October 2012     

Capital Expenditure and Capital 
Accounting (10.12/13) 

Draft issued 9 
October 2012 

    

Creditors (11.12/13) FINAL Green 0 1 2 

Insurances (12.12/13) 
Draft issued 12 
October 2012     

Asset Management (Housing) 
(13.12/13) 

Draft issued 19 
October 2012     

Income & Debtors (14.12/13) 
Draft issued 22 
October 2012 

    

Procurement (15.12/13) 
Draft issued 2 

November 2012 
    

NNDR (16.12/13) 
Draft issued 19 
November 2012 

    

Payroll (including Expenses & 
Pensions) 

12 November 
2012 

    

Cash, Banking & Treasury 22 November     

Page 6



 

2 

 

Management 2012 

Reconciliation testing 28 November 
2012 

    

Council Tax 
13 December 

2012 
    

ICT Review December 2013     

Risk Management 
03 December 

2012 
    

Environmental Health / Waste 
Management 

03 January 2013     

Housing Benefits 08 January 2013     

Annual Governance Statement 18 February 2013     

Follow Up 18 February 2013     

Top up testing 11 March 2013     

Performance Management 11 March 2013     

Mears Follow Up Review 25 March 2013     

 

Other Matters  

Planning and Liaison:  

Since the last Corporate Governance Committee we have met with Management to discuss the progress of the audit 
plan and to scope a number of 2012/13 audits.  

We had an agreed protocol with the previous External Auditor (Audit Commission) to ensure maximum reliance can 
be placed on our work and reduce where possible any duplication. Following the changes to External Audit for 
2012/13 (as a result of the national procurement exercise reported previously), the new External Auditors may have a 
differing methodology which could result in the protocol changing moving forward. This may impact on the level of 
resources required within the Internal Audit Plan to deliver the protocol. We are in contact with Ernst and Young and 
have a meeting arranged for the 18th December to discuss joint working and will report back to the Corporate 
Governance once further information is known. 

We have issued one red (negative) opinion on the Repairs – Partnership Arrangements audit since the previous 
Committee meeting.  The Corporate Governance Committee should note that any negative assurance opinions will be 
noted in the annual report.  However, no common weaknesses have been identified so far within our reports for 
2012/13.   
Management have agreed all of the recommendations in the reports finalised above, with agreed target dates for 
implementation. 

 

Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 - Change Control:  

Since the last Corporate Governance Committee, the Executive Director – Corporate Services has requested an 
additional follow up review of the Red opinion on the Repairs – Partnership Arrangements (6.12/13) review reported at 
this meeting.  This will involve working closely with the Partner (Mears) along with council officers. 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



 

3 

 

 

Information and Briefings:  

We have issued three updates electronically since the last Corporate Governance Committee:  

 

· LG eUpdate August 2012 

· LG eUpdate September 2012 

· LG eUpdate October 2012 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the 
weaknesses that exist, or of all the improvements that may be required.  Whilst every care has been taken to ensure that the information provided in this report is as 
accurate as possible, based on the information provided and documentation reviewed, no complete guarantee or warranty can be given with regard to the advice and 
information contained herein.  Our work does not provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not exist.   

This report is prepared solely for the use of Authority and senior management of South Cambridgeshire District Council.  Details may be made available to specified 
external agencies, including external auditors, but otherwise the report should not be quoted or referred to in whole or in part without prior consent.  No responsibility to 
any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended for any other purpose. 

© 2012 RSM Tenon Limited 

The term "partner" is a title for senior employees, none of whom provide any services on their own behalf. 

RSM Tenon Limited is a subsidiary of RSM Tenon Group PLC. RSM Tenon Group PLC is an independent member of the RSM International network. The RSM 
International network is a network of independent accounting and consulting firms each of which practices in its own right. RSM International is the brand used by the 
network which is not itself a separate legal entity in any jurisdiction.  

RSM Tenon Limited (No 4066924) is registered in England and Wales.  Registered Office 66 Chiltern Street, London W1U 4GB. England 

Page 8



Audit Commission, 3rd Floor, Eastbrook, Shaftesbury Road, Cambridge CB2 8BF 

T 0844 798 4200 F 01223 353073  www.audit-commission.gov.uk 

Our reference CA22312A

19 October 2012 

Direct line 0844 798 5811 
Email paul-king@audit-

commission.gov.uk

Members
South Cambridgeshire District Council 
Cambourne Business Park 
Cambourne
Cambridgeshire CB23 6EA 

Dear Member 

South Cambridgeshire District Council Annual Audit Letter 2011/12 

I am pleased to submit my Annual Audit Letter which summarises my 2011/12 audit of South 
Cambridgeshire District Council. 

Financial statements 

On 28 September 2012 I presented my Annual Governance Report (AGR) to the Corporate 
Governance Committee outlining the findings of my audit of the Authority’s 2011/12 financial 
statements. I will not replicate those findings in this letter. 

Following the Corporate Governance Committee, on 28 September 2012, I: 

! issued an unqualified opinion on the Authority’s 2011/12 financial statements included in 
the Authority’s Statement of Accounts;

! concluded that you have made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in your use of resources; and 

! certified completion of the audit. 

Duties under the Audit Commission Act 1998 

I did not exercise any powers under the Audit Commission Act.

Closing remarks 

I have discussed and agreed this letter with the Chief Executive and Executive Director, 
Corporate Services. While this has been another challenging year for the Authority I wish to 
thank the finance staff for their positive and constructive approach they have taken to my audit. I 
also wish to thank senior management and the Corporate Governance Committee for their 
support and co-operation during the audit. 

Agenda Item 5Page 9



2

This is my final Annual Audit Letter as District Auditor, as the Authority will have a new 
appointed auditor for 2012/13 following the outcome of the Audit Commission procurement 
exercise to outsource the work of the Audit Commission’s Audit Practice. I should like to take 
this opportunity to once again thank the Authority and their staff for the professional approach to 
the audit during the time that I have been the appointed auditor.

Yours sincerely 

Paul King 
District Auditor 

Page 10



  C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 
re

tu
rn

s 
- 

an
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 
S

o
u

th
 C

am
b

ri
d

g
es

h
ir

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

A
u

d
it

 2
01

1/
12

 

Page 11



  C
o

n
te

n
ts

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

3

R
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
20

11
/1

2 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 w
o

rk
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.4

    

Page 12



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
3

 In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

L
o

ca
l a

u
th

o
ri

ti
es

 c
la

im
 la

rg
e 

su
m

s 
o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 m

o
n

ey
 in

 g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 s

u
b

si
d

ie
s 

fr
o

m
 c

en
tr

al
 

g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
an

d
 o

th
er

 g
ra

n
t-

p
ay

in
g

 b
o

d
ie

s 
an

d
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 r
et

u
rn

s 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 t

o
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

. M
y 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 a

ss
u

ra
n

ce
 t

o
 

g
ra

n
t-

p
ay

in
g

 b
o

d
ie

s 
th

at
 c

la
im

s 
fo

r 
g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
si

d
ie

s 
ar

e 
m

ad
e 

p
ro

p
er

ly
 o

r 
th

at
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

in
 f

in
an

ci
al

 r
et

u
rn

s 
is

 r
el

ia
b

le
. T

h
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

o
u

tc
o

m
es

 o
f 

m
y 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 
yo

u
r 

20
11

/1
2 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 r
et

u
rn

s.
 

U
nd

er
 s

ec
tio

n 
28

 o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8,
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 m
ay

, a
t t

he
 r

eq
ue

st
 o

f a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s,

 m
ak

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
ce

rt
ify

in
g 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

be
ca

us
e 

sc
he

m
e 

te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t. 
W

he
re

 s
uc

h 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

re
 m

ad
e,

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 to
 it

s 
au

di
to

rs
 s

et
 o

ut
 th

e 
w

or
k 

au
di

to
rs

 m
us

t d
o 

be
fo

re
 th

ey
 g

iv
e 

th
ei

r 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

. T
he

 w
or

k 
re

qu
ire

d 
va

rie
s 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t d

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
r 

gr
an

t-
pa

yi
ng

 b
od

y,
 b

ut
 in

 b
ro

ad
 te

rm
s:

 
!

 
fo

r 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
be

lo
w

 £
12

5,
00

0 
th

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 d

oe
s 

no
t m

ak
e 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 I 
w

as
 n

ot
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 w
or

k;
 

!
 

fo
r 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

£1
25

,0
00

 a
nd

 £
50

0,
00

0,
 I 

un
de

rt
oo

k 
lim

ite
d 

te
st

s 
to

 a
gr

ee
 fo

rm
 e

nt
rie

s 
to

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

re
co

rd
s,

 b
ut

 d
id

 n
ot

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 

an
y 

te
st

in
g 

of
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 o
f e

xp
en

di
tu

re
; a

nd
 

!
 

fo
r 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

ov
er

 £
50

0,
00

0 
I p

la
nn

ed
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 m
y 

w
or

k 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

in
st

ru
ct

io
n 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t f
or

 th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 to

 d
ec

id
e 

w
he

th
er

 o
r 

no
t t

o 
pl

ac
e 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 it

. D
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 th
at

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
I u

nd
er

to
ok

 te
st

in
g 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 a
gr

ee
 fo

rm
 e

nt
rie

s 
to

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

re
co

rd
s 

an
d 

te
st

 th
e 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 o

f e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 o
r 

da
ta

.  

C
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

w
he

re
 I 

ag
re

e 
w

ith
 y

ou
r 

of
fic

er
s 

th
at

 th
is

 is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

. M
y 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

re
fe

r 
to

 a
 q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
n 

le
tte

r 
w

he
re

 
th

er
e 

is
 d

is
ag

re
em

en
t o

r 
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

y,
 o

r 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 s
ch

em
e 

te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s.

Page 13



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
4

 R
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
20

11
/1

2 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 
w

o
rk

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

re
su

lt
s 

o
f 

m
y 

20
11

/1
2 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 a

n
y 

si
g

n
if

ic
an

t 
is

su
es

 a
ri

si
n

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

at
 w

o
rk

. 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 c

la
im

s/
re

tu
rn

s 
ce

rt
ifi

ed
 h

as
 r

ed
uc

ed
 a

s 
w

or
k 

is
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

on
 H

ou
si

ng
 F

in
an

ce
 B

as
e 

D
at

a 
R

et
ur

n 
an

d 
th

e 
D

is
ab

le
d 

F
ac

ili
tie

s 
G

ra
nt

.  
 T

ab
le

 1
: 

R
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
20

11
/1

2 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 w
o

rk
 

 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

V
al

ue
 o

f c
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 fo

r 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
(£

’0
00

)

V
al

ue
 o

f a
ny

 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
(£

)
W

as
 a

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

n 
le

tte
r 

is
su

ed
?

20
11

/1
2 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
F

ee
 (

£)
20

10
/1

1 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

F
ee

 (
£)

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

be
ne

fit
 s

ch
em

e 
32

,2
88

90
N

o
23

,2
58

20
,5

63
 

P
oo

lin
g 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 

ca
pi

ta
l r

ec
ei

pt
s 

82
9

N
il

N
o

2,
80

0
1,

89
0 

H
R

A
 s

ub
si

dy
 

(1
2,

52
6)

N
il

N
o

2,
13

2
2,

00
9 

 

Page 14



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
5

  C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

V
al

ue
 o

f c
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 fo

r 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
(£

’0
00

)

V
al

ue
 o

f a
ny

 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 m
ad

e
W

as
 a

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

n 
le

tte
r 

is
su

ed
?

20
11

/1
2 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
F

ee
 (

£)
20

10
/1

1 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

F
ee

 (
£)

N
at

io
na

l n
on

-d
om

es
tic

 
ra

te
s 

re
tu

rn
 

63
,9

05
N

il
Y

es
4,

20
1

4,
45

9 

H
ou

si
ng

 F
in

an
ce

 B
as

e 
D

at
a 

R
et

ur
n 

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

4,
98

2 

D
is

ab
le

d 
F

ac
ili

tie
s 

G
ra

nt
 

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

47
1 

T
ot

al
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

fe
es

 
32

,3
91

34
,3

74
 

 C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 M
y 

w
or

k 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a 
su

pp
or

te
d 

th
e 

vi
ew

 th
at

 I 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

in
 th

e 
A

nn
ua

l G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

R
ep

or
t t

ha
t t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
s 

a 
st

ro
ng

 fi
na

nc
ia

l m
an

ag
em

en
t b

as
e.

 
It 

in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 c
on

fir
m

s 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 s
tr

on
g 

cl
ai

m
s 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

in
 p

la
ce

. I
 th

er
ef

or
e,

 s
im

ila
r 

to
 la

st
 y

ea
r,

 h
av

e 
no

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 

of
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

w
or

k.
  

 T
he

 m
aj

or
 fe

e 
va

ria
nc

e 
re

la
te

d 
to

 H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
its

. T
hi

s 
ar

os
e 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
co

m
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

of
 r

ec
ip

ie
nt

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ra
nd

om
 s

am
pl

e 
of

 c
la

im
s 

th
at

 w
er

e 
ch

os
en

 fo
r 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 r

ef
le

ct
s 

an
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 c
om

pl
ex

ity
; t

he
re

 w
er

e 
al

so
 s

om
e 

m
in

or
 c

ha
ng

es
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

. 
 A

lth
ou

gh
 a

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

n 
le

tte
r 

w
as

 is
su

ed
 in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f t

he
 N

at
io

na
l n

on
-d

om
es

tic
 r

at
es

 r
et

ur
n,

 th
is

 w
as

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f t
ec

hn
ic

al
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 is
su

es
 th

at
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
as

 a
lre

ad
y 

in
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t a
bo

ut
. T

he
se

 it
em

s 
w

er
e 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ra
th

er
 th

an
 a

m
en

dm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

cl
ai

m
.  

 

C
lo

si
n

g
 r

em
ar

k 

A
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ha

s 
ta

ke
n 

a 
po

si
tiv

e 
an

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tiv

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 m
y 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

w
or

k.
 I 

w
is

h 
to

 th
an

k 
th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

st
af

f 
fo

r 
th

ei
r 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 c

o-
op

er
at

io
n 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
w

or
k.

 

 

Page 15



  ©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

2.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

 T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 g

ra
nt

-p
ay

in
g 

bo
di

es
, a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s,
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 a
nd

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 e
xp

la
in

s 
th

e 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

ite
d 

bo
dy

.  
                  

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

01
2 

Page 16



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Corporate Governance Committee 14th December 2012 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Corporate Services) / Legal & Democratic Services 

Manager 
 

 
REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA)  

 QUARTERLY UPDATE ON USE OF RIPA  
 
Purpose 
 

1. To update the Committee on the new requirement for authorisations to be obtained 
from the Magistrates Court, the new directed surveillance crime threshold and the use 
of RIPA powers in the last quarter.  
 
Recommendations 

 
2. That Corporate Governance Committee: 
 

NOTE the information contained in the report about the council’s use of surveillance 
powers in the period October to December 2012. 

 
Background 

 
3. The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) regulates covert 

investigations by the Council.  It was introduced to ensure that individuals’ rights are 
protected while also ensuring that law enforcement and security agencies have the 
powers they need to do their job effectively. 

 
4. Following a Home Office Review into counter-terrorism and security powers the 

Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 was passed on 1st May 2012 with the effect that 
from 1st November 2012 all local authority surveillance authorised under RIPA have 
to be approved by a Magistrate. The role of the Magistrate is to ensure that the 
correct procedures have been followed and the relevant factors have been taken into 
account.  The new provisions allow the Magistrate, on refusing an approval of an 
authorisation, to quash that authorisation. 
 

5. The Council’s RIPA policy was amended by the Committee at its September meeting 
in advance of the new legislation to ensure it complies with the law. 
 

6. Guidance was issued by the Home Office in October on the operation of the judicial 
approval process and on the directed surveillance crime threshold. The new judicial 
approval mechanism is in addition to the existing Council authorisation processes and 
the Council will still be subject to the inspection regime of the independent RIPA 
oversight Commissioners. 
 
Directed Surveillance Crime Threshold 
 

7. The crime threshold, which also came into force on 1st November, means that local 
authorities cannot authorise directed surveillance for the purpose of preventing 
disorder unless this involves a criminal offence which carries a custodial sentence of 

Agenda Item 6Page 17



six months or more (the Serious Crime Test) or relates to the underage sale of 
alcohol or tobacco. 
 

8. Local authorities may continue to authorise use of directed surveillance in more 
serious cases as long as the other tests are met - ie. that it is necessary and 
proportionate and where prior approval from a JP has been granted. 
 

9. Local authorities may not authorise the use of directed surveillance under RIPA to 
investigate disorder that does not involve criminal offences or to investigate low-level 
offences including littering, dog control and fly-posting. 
 
The council’s use of RIPA in Quarter 4 2012 
 

10. The information in the table below outlines the authorisations granted by the council 
during the fourth quarter of the year 2012. 

 
Quarter Directed 

surveillance 
CHIS Total Purpose 

October - 
December 2012 

2 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1)Benefit Fraud 
(joint 
investigation 
with DWP) – 
ongoing 
investigation in 
Willingham 
 
2) Fly Tipping in 
Swavesey 
Ongoing 
investigation – 
authorisation 
successfully 
obtained from 
Cambridge 
Magistrates 
Court ( the first 
RIPA application 
in Cambs) 
 

 
Implications 
 

11.  Financial No implications 
Legal Authorisation of surveillance activity gives that surveillance 

“lawful authority” for the purposes of the European Convention 
on Human Rights 

Staffing No implications 
Risk Management See comments under “Legal” 
Equality and 
Diversity 

See comments under “Legal” 
Equality Impact 
Assessment 
completed 

No adverse impact  
 

Climate Change No implications 

Page 18



Effect on Strategic Aims 
 

13. None identified.  
 

Conclusions / Summary 
 
14. This report updates the Committee on the Council’s use of RIPA powers in the last 

quarter. The new procedures will affect the council’s investigators and authorising 
officers by adding a further level of scrutiny of its authorisation forms. The Council 
has successfully obtained its first authorisation from the Magistrates Court with no 
areas of concern being raised. 

 
 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report:  
 
The Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 

 
Contact Officer:  Fiona McMillan – Legal & Democratic Services Manager 

Telephone: (01954) 713027 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is left blank intentionally.


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Internal Audit Progress Report
	5 External Audit: Annual Audit Letter 2011-12 and Certification of Claims Report
	Annual Report - Certification of claims & returns

	6 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) - Quarterly Update

